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                 978-777-0004 Telephone

April 1, 2025
REV. April 28, 2025
Bethany Barstow
Hamilton Conservation Commission

PO Box 429

Hamilton, MA 01936

RE:
Notice of Intent Application 
32 Day Avenue, Hamilton
Map 47, Lots 6 & 7

Dear Ms. Barstow and Conservation Commission Members:

This Notice of Intent application is to construct a new deck off the rear of the home.  Normally, a deck extending into maintained lawn is one of the exempt activities under the Wetlands Protection Act Regulations at 310 CMR 10.02(2)b)2.  In this situation, a portion of the deck is closer than 50 feet to the flagged wetlands, thus the project does not qualify for the exemption.  Being less than 50 feet, the project requires a waiver from your By-law no build zone.  Appropriate mitigation is provided in support of the waiver request.  
The project site is located at 32 Day Avenue.  The applicants are relatively new owners of the property.  Some on the Commission may recall, I presented a Request for Determination of Applicability to install a septic system upgrade at the property in 2022, around the time of sale of the property.  The Commission issued a Negative Determination and the septic system upgrade has been installed in the front yard.  
Site Description 

The project site is an existing residential house lot with a 3-bedroom home.  The property is actually two lots, co-owned by the applicants.  Parcel Map 47 lot 7 has the home at 32 Day Avenue.  The adjacent, vacant lot is Map 47, lot 6.  Collectively, the property is developed with the home, short drive off Day Avenue with lawn area around the home.  Lot 7 is fully maintained.  A portion of lot 6 is encumbered by the wetlands and vegetated buffer zone to the wetlands, with the remainder being an extension of he maintained lawn.  

Wetland Resources at the Site

The wetlands were re-marked Wetlands & Land Management, Inc. in March 2025.  There is a vegetated cattail marsh wetland to the rear of the property.  The wetland boundary behind the home however cuts across the low-lying portion of the maintained rear yard.  The boundary in this area was determined on the basis of hydric soils  

The delineation starts with flag A1 in the grass area behind the house.  The initial flags A1 through A6 cut across a portion of the mowed lawn in the rear yard of the house. Beyond A6, the boundary entered into more “natural” vegetation beyond the mowed grass.  My delineation for this project ended with flag A11 where the wetland boundary was well beyond the footprint of the home.   The wetlands will eventually extend to the east side of the property where a culvert enters the property from the other side of Day Avenue. A channelized watercourse can be seen at this culvert.  

No Riverfront Area
The USGS map for this area shows a thin blue line or an intermittent stream on the property.  Pursuant to the regulations at 310 CMR 10.58, I further evaluated the watercourse using the USGS StreamStat on-line stream evaluation tool.  The evaluation print-out is included with this report.

The resultant evaluation calculates that the contributing watershed to this section of stream is 0.08 square miles and the residual flow in the 99th percentile flow duration is less than 0.01 cubic feet per second.

Regulations at 310 CMR 10.58 establish a threshold of requiring a watershed more than one half square mile in area and residual stream flow being at least 0.01 cfs in order to presume the stream is perennial.  The StreamStat evaluation fails on both parameters.  Accordingly, the watercourse is presumed to be intermittent and there is no riverfront area associated with this seasonal stream.


Bordering Land Subject to Flooding
The FEMA map shows a Zone A bordering land subject to flooding extending across the rear of the property.  There is no base flood elevation established for this Zone A.  

The limit of the FEMA Zone A is scaled onto the plan from the current FEMA map.  

Rare Species and Certified Vernal Pools

The MassMapper Natural Heritage data layer indicates the property is not within estimated habitat of rare wetlands wildlife, nor is there Priority Habitat of threatened or endangered species.  There are no certified vernal pools on this property.  

Proposed Work

The Notice of Intent application is for installation of a new deck off the rear of the home.  The deck is a modest sized feature connecting to and extending only 12 feet from the rear of the home.  The deck extends out over maintained lawn and does not require for any vegetation to be removed.  

Furthermore, other than cutting out a four inch by four-inch piece of turf grass, the deck footings do not require any ground disturbance or excavation.  The contractor will use the diamond pier post support.  A total of 6 to 10 of these support points will be needed for the deck and the steps.  

The support system works by driving four opposing stabilization rods through the concrete post support and into the soil below.  The rods are driven at an angle and crisscross each other rod, thereby providing resistance and support for the wooden deck posts.  The rods are driven by a hand-held pneumatic or electric hammer.  

Once the supports are set, the rest of the project is limited to above ground carpentry work.  Minor carpentry is required at the rear of the home to convert a triple window to a new door opening.  Demolition of the existing rear door stoop is also eliminated and the proposed deck steps down to grade will extend over the existing steps, thus eliminating the need for demolition.

The builder will collect all scraps and refuse at the end of each day.  Even though there is no excavation, the plans show a proposed straw wattle erosion control to clearly establish the limit of work.  

There is no work occurring within the FEMA Zone A.

Request for Waiver
The deck is partially in and partially beyond the 50-foot no build zone.  Roughly 147 square feet of the proposed deck and steps occur within the 50-foot no build zone.  This work is unavoidable given the location of the home in proximity to the hydric soil line across the rear yard.  The deck has to connect to a logical point along the house, i.e. not through a bathroom wall or through the garage or a bedroom.  Furthermore, there is no location along the rear of the home to situate this modest feature and be completely out of the no build zone.
The feature has been minimized to respect the 50-foot no build zone as much as possible.  The builder is using the no-dig footing system to avoid ground disruption in the no build zone.  

The owners will install wetland restoration mitigation in the rear yard to support this waiver request.  The owner will designate a minimum of 1250 square feet of existing hydric soil lawn area and re-vegetate the area with native shrubs.  The area will be allowed to naturalize after the shrub installation.  This provides a mitigation ratio of at least roughly 8.5:1 compensation for the area of no build zone encroachment.  
We will discuss this mitigation enhancement at the May 14, 2025 meeting. I will attend to present the project and answer any questions.
Sincerely, 

Wetlands and Land Management, Inc.

William Manuell
William J. Manuell

Wetland Scientist
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